

#### InteliVision 5 CAN, InteliVision 5 CAN Backlit

#### Controller Display Unit equipped with CAN interface

W version 1.9.0	
1 Document information	4
2 System overview	6
3 Installation and wiring	14
4 Graphical user interface	20
5 Quick help	37
6 Technical data	50
7 List of possible events	51

Copyright © 2017 ComAp a.s. Written by ComAp Prague, Czech Republic ComAp a.s., U Uranie 1612/14a, 170 00 Prague 7, Czech Republic Tel: +420 246 012 111 E-mail: info@comap-control.com, www.comap-control.com

# **Global Guide**



# **Table of contents**

1 Document information	4
1.1 Clarification of notation	4
1.2 About this guide	4
1.3 Legal notice	4
1.4 General warnings	5
1.4.1 Dangerous voltage	5
1.5 Document history	5
1.6 Related products	5
2 System overview	6
2.1 General description	7
2.2 Controller Firmware and PC Software Supporting InteliVision 5 CAN	7
2.3 How to connect InteliVision 5 CAN to the controller	8
2.3.1 Physical description	8
2.3.2 Address overview	8
2.3.3 Connection rules	10
2.3.4 CAN bus connection rules	11
2.3.5 Communication detection	12
2.4 Power supply, analog input and binary output connection	. 13
3 Installation and wiring	14
3 Installation and wiring 3.1 Dimensions, terminals and mounting	<b>14</b> 15
3 Installation and wiring 3.1 Dimensions, terminals and mounting 3.1.1 InteliVision 5 CAN,	<b>14</b> 15 15
<ul> <li>3 Installation and wiring</li> <li>3.1 Dimensions, terminals and mounting</li></ul>	<b>14</b> 15 15 17
<ul> <li>3 Installation and wiring</li> <li>3.1 Dimensions, terminals and mounting</li> <li>3.1.1 InteliVision 5 CAN,</li> <li>3.1.2 InteliVision 5 Harness-2</li> <li>3.1.3 InteliVision 5 IP 65 connector</li> </ul>	<b>14</b> 15 15 17 17
<ul> <li>3 Installation and wiring</li> <li>3.1 Dimensions, terminals and mounting</li> <li>3.1.1 InteliVision 5 CAN,</li> <li>3.1.2 InteliVision 5 Harness-2</li> <li>3.1.3 InteliVision 5 IP 65 connector</li> <li>3.2 How to plug-in the Harmess cable</li> </ul>	<b>14</b> 15 15 17 17 17
<ul> <li>3 Installation and wiring</li> <li>3.1 Dimensions, terminals and mounting</li> <li>3.1.1 InteliVision 5 CAN,</li> <li>3.1.2 InteliVision 5 Harness-2</li> <li>3.1.3 InteliVision 5 IP 65 connector</li> <li>3.2 How to plug-in the Harmess cable</li> <li>3.3 How to extract the Harmess cable</li> </ul>	<b>14</b> 15 15 17 17 17 18
<ul> <li>3 Installation and wiring</li> <li>3.1 Dimensions, terminals and mounting</li> <li>3.1.1 InteliVision 5 CAN,</li> <li>3.1.2 InteliVision 5 Harness-2</li> <li>3.1.3 InteliVision 5 IP 65 connector</li> <li>3.2 How to plug-in the Harmess cable</li> <li>3.3 How to extract the Harmess cable</li> <li>3.4 CAN Bus line ferrit cores</li> </ul>	<b>14</b> 15 15 17 17 17 17 18 19
<ul> <li>3 Installation and wiring</li> <li>3.1 Dimensions, terminals and mounting</li> <li>3.1.1 InteliVision 5 CAN,</li> <li>3.1.2 InteliVision 5 Harness-2</li> <li>3.1.3 InteliVision 5 IP 65 connector</li> <li>3.2 How to plug-in the Harmess cable</li> <li>3.3 How to extract the Harmess cable</li> <li>3.4 CAN Bus line ferrit cores</li> </ul>	14 15 15 17 17 17 17 18 19 20
<ul> <li>3 Installation and wiring</li> <li>3.1 Dimensions, terminals and mounting</li> <li>3.1.1 InteliVision 5 CAN,</li> <li>3.1.2 InteliVision 5 Harness-2</li> <li>3.1.3 InteliVision 5 IP 65 connector</li> <li>3.2 How to plug-in the Harmess cable</li> <li>3.3 How to extract the Harmess cable</li> <li>3.4 CAN Bus line ferrit cores</li> </ul>	14 15 15 17 17 17 17 18 19 20 21
<ul> <li>3 Installation and wiring</li> <li>3.1 Dimensions, terminals and mounting</li> <li>3.1.1 InteliVision 5 CAN,</li> <li>3.1.2 InteliVision 5 Harness-2</li> <li>3.1.3 InteliVision 5 IP 65 connector</li> <li>3.2 How to plug-in the Harmess cable</li> <li>3.3 How to extract the Harmess cable</li> <li>3.4 CAN Bus line ferrit cores</li> </ul> 4 Graphical user interface <ul> <li>4.1 GUI overview</li> <li>4.2 Navigation buttons</li> </ul>	14 15 15 17 17 17 17 18 19 20 21
<ul> <li>3 Installation and wiring</li> <li>3.1 Dimensions, terminals and mounting</li> <li>3.1.1 InteliVision 5 CAN,</li> <li>3.1.2 InteliVision 5 Harness-2</li> <li>3.1.3 InteliVision 5 IP 65 connector</li> <li>3.2 How to plug-in the Harmess cable</li> <li>3.3 How to extract the Harmess cable</li> <li>3.4 CAN Bus line ferrit cores</li> </ul> 4 Graphical user interface <ul> <li>4.1 GUI overview</li> <li>4.2 Navigation buttons</li> <li>4.3 Context buttons</li> </ul>	14 15 15 17 17 17 17 18 19 20 21 21 22
<ul> <li>3 Installation and wiring</li> <li>3.1 Dimensions, terminals and mounting</li> <li>3.1.1 InteliVision 5 CAN,</li> <li>3.1.2 InteliVision 5 Harness-2</li> <li>3.1.3 InteliVision 5 IP 65 connector</li> <li>3.2 How to plug-in the Harmess cable</li> <li>3.3 How to extract the Harmess cable</li> <li>3.4 CAN Bus line ferrit cores</li> </ul> 4 Graphical user interface <ul> <li>4.1 GUI overview</li> <li>4.2 Navigation buttons</li> <li>4.3 Context buttons</li> <li>4.4 Control buttons</li> </ul>	14 15 15 17 17 17 17 17 18 19 20 21 21 22 23
<ul> <li>3 Installation and wiring</li> <li>3.1 Dimensions, terminals and mounting</li> <li>3.1.1 InteliVision 5 CAN,</li> <li>3.1.2 InteliVision 5 Harness-2</li> <li>3.1.3 InteliVision 5 IP 65 connector</li> <li>3.2 How to plug-in the Harmess cable</li> <li>3.3 How to extract the Harmess cable</li> <li>3.4 CAN Bus line ferrit cores</li> </ul> 4 Graphical user interface <ul> <li>4.1 GUI overview</li> <li>4.2 Navigation buttons</li> <li>4.3 Context buttons</li> <li>4.4 Control buttons</li> <li>4.5 Metering screens</li> </ul>	14 15 15 17 17 17 17 17 17 19 20 21 21 22 23
3 Installation and wiring         3.1 Dimensions, terminals and mounting         3.1.1 InteliVision 5 CAN,         3.1.2 InteliVision 5 Harness-2         3.1.3 InteliVision 5 IP 65 connector         3.2 How to plug-in the Harmess cable         3.3 How to extract the Harmess cable         3.4 CAN Bus line ferrit cores         4 Graphical user interface         4.1 GUI overview         4.2 Navigation buttons         4.3 Context buttons         4.4 Control buttons         4.5 Metering screens	14 15 15 17 17 17 17 17 18 19 20 21 21 21 22 23 23 26
3 Installation and wiring         3.1 Dimensions, terminals and mounting         3.1.1 InteliVision 5 CAN,         3.1.2 InteliVision 5 Harness-2         3.1.3 InteliVision 5 IP 65 connector         3.2 How to plug-in the Harmess cable         3.3 How to extract the Harmess cable         3.4 CAN Bus line ferrit cores         4 Graphical user interface         4.1 GUI overview         4.2 Navigation buttons         4.3 Context buttons         4.4 Control buttons         4.5 Metering screens         4.6 Setpoints screens         4.6.1 Numerical value change	14 15 15 17 17 17 17 18 19 20 21 21 21 22 23 23 26 26

# ComAp 🔈

4.6.3 String edit
4.6.4 Time and date edit
4.6.5 Combined setpoints
4.7 Alarmlist page
4.7.1 ECU Alarmlist page
4.7.2 AlarmList page navigation
4.8 History page
4.9 Help/Others menu
4.9.1 Languages
4.9.2 Password
4.9.3 Communication
4.9.4 ControllerInfo
4.9.5 ECU Modules
4.9.6 IV Info
4.9.7 IV Settings
4.9.8 Service screen

#### 5 Quick help

6	Technical data	50
	5.13 How to change display brightness	48
	5.12 How to program InteliVision 5 CAN	45
	5.11 How to change setpoints	44
	5.10 How to find alarms	43
	5.9 How to change controller mode	42
	5.8 How to log out	42
	5.7 How to change a password	41
	5.6 How to enter a password	40
	5.5 How to view a control clutch status	40
	5.4 How to view a timer status	39
	5.3 How to view a controller status	39
	5.2 How to view a controller mode	39
	5.1 Main icons description	38

#### 7 List of possible events

37



# **1** Document information

1.1 Clarification of notation	4
1.2 About this guide	4
1.3 Legal notice	4
1.4 General warnings	5
1.5 Document history	5
1.6 Related products	5

6 back to Table of contents

### **1.1 Clarification of notation**

Note: This type of paragraph calls readers attention to a notice or related theme.

IMPORTANT: This type of paragraph highlights a procedure, adjustment etc., which can cause a damage or improper function of the equipment if not performed correctly and may not be clear at first sight.

**Example:** This type of paragraph contains information that is used to illustrate how a specific function works.

### **1.2 About this guide**

This manual contains important instructions about InteliVision 5 CAN display unit that shall be full filled during the installation and maintenance.

This manual provides general information on how to install and use InteliVision 5 CAN display unit.

### 1.3 Legal notice

This End User's Guide/Manual as part of the Documentation is an inseparable part of ComAp's Product and may be used exclusively according to the conditions defined in the "END USER or Distributor LICENSE AGREEMENT CONDITIONS – COMAP CONTROL SYSTEMS SOFTWARE" (License Agreement) and/or in the "ComAp a.s. Global terms and conditions for sale of Products and provision of Services" (Terms) and/or in the "Standardní podmínky projektů komplexního řešení ke smlouvě o dílo, Standard Conditions for Supply of Complete Solutions" (Conditions) as applicable.

ComAp's License Agreement is governed by the Czech Civil Code 89/2012 Col., by the Authorship Act 121/2000 Col., by international treaties and by other relevant legal documents regulating protection of the intellectual properties (TRIPS).

The End User and/or ComAp's Distributor shall only be permitted to use this End User's Guide/Manual with ComAp Control System Registered Products. The Documentation is not intended and applicable for any other purpose.

Official version of the ComAp's End User's Guide/Manual is the version published in English. ComAp reserves the right to update this End User's Guide/Manual at any time. ComAp does not assume any responsibility for its use outside of the scope of the Terms or the Conditions and the License Agreement.



Licensed End User is entitled to make only necessary number of copies of the End User's Guide/Manual. Any translation of this End User's Guide/Manual without the prior written consent of ComAp is expressly prohibited!

Even if the prior written consent from ComAp is acquired, ComAp does not take any responsibility for the content, trustworthiness and quality of any such translation. ComAp will deem a translation equal to this End User's Guide/Manual only if it agrees to verify such translation. The terms and conditions of such verification must be agreed in the written form and in advance.

For more details relating to the Ownership, Extent of Permitted Reproductions Term of Use of the Documentation and to the Confidentiality rules please review and comply with the ComAp's License Agreement, Terms and Conditions available on <a href="http://www.comap-control.com">www.comap-control.com</a>.

### **1.4 General warnings**

#### 1.4.1 Dangerous voltage

Always connect grounding terminal, which is situated on the chassis of the display unit.

IMPORTANT: Do not use out of range power supplies.

### 1.5 Document history

Revision number	Related sw. version	Date	Author
5	1.9.0	1.12.2017	ComAp
4	1.3.0	13.9.2012	ComAp
3	1.2.0	16.2.2012	ComAp
2	1.1.0	3.8.2011	ComAp
1	1.0.0	9.5.2011	ComAp

### **1.6 Related products**

Product	Description	Order code
InteliSys Gas	Industrial grade controller for gas gen-set based CHPs and power generation applications	I2GASXXBAB
InteliSys <sup>NTC</sup> [[[Undefined variable Specific.BaseBox]]]	Premium Parallel Gen-set Controller	IS-NTC-BB
InteliGen <sup>NTC</sup> [[[Undefined variable Specific.BaseBox]]]	Complex Parallel Gen-set Controller	IG-NTC-BB
InteliGen NT BaseBox	Complex Parallel Gen-set Controller	IG-NT-BB
InteliMains <sup>NTC</sup> [[[Undefined variable Specific.BaseBox]]]	Mains Supervision Controller Base Unit	IM-NTC-BB
InteliSys NTC Hybrid	Hybrid Gen-Set controller	IS-NTC HYBRID
InteliDrive DCU Marine	Engine controller for marine application	ID-DCU MARINE



# **2** System overview

2.1 General description	7
2.2 Controller Firmware and PC Software Supporting InteliVision 5 CAN	7
2.3 How to connect InteliVision 5 CAN to the controller	8
2.4 Power supply, analog input and binary output connection	13
6 back to Table of contents	



### 2.1 General description

InteliVision 5 CAN is the display unit equipped with CAN interface. It is designed as a Plug and Play solution with economical visibility of all engine data and monitoring information in colorful display. The compact ComAp InteliVision 5 CAN display unit is suitable for harsh environments.

Because of the same cut-out as I-RD-CAN the InteliVision 5 CAN can be easily used as a replacement..

InteliVision 5 CAN is offered in two hardware modifications:

- InteliVision 5 CAN
- InteliVision 5 CAN Backlit
  - Germanischer Lloyd MARINE approval
  - Backlighted keyboard

**Note:** Just onlyInteliVision 5 CAN Backlit version is covered by Germanischer Lloyd MARINE approval. The only difference between these two versions is a presence of the standard or backlighted keyboard version. Both versions are IP65 protected from all sides and equipped with the binary output switch for HORN signaling. CAN interface is galvanically isolated.

Both versions supports the InteliDrive controllers (ID-DCU, ID-DCU-Marine, ID-Mobile, ID-Mobile Logger) and InteliGen-NT and InteliSys NT family controllers as well.

InteliVision 5 CAN Global Guide is mainly dedicated to describe functionality with regards to InteliDrive controller family. It is supposed to use IntellVision 5 CAN and InteliVision 5 CAN backlit mainly in InteliDrive controller applications.

Optional accessories are available :

- InteliVision 5 Harness-2: 2m prefabricated cable with unassigned wires at the end
- InteliVision 5 IP 65 Connector: connector set containing connector body and 10 corresponding terminal female pins
- ECU Simulator: set containing supported USB/CAN converter and various cabling, for new firmware/font/logo download into the InteliVision 5 CAN

## 2.2 Controller Firmware and PC Software Supporting InteliVision 5 CAN

Actual controller firmware version
ID-DCU Marine-3.0.0
ID-DCU Industrial-3.3.0
ID-Mobile-2.3.0
ID-Mobile Logger-2.4.0

Table 2.1 Available firmware



DiveConiig-3.9.0
DriveMonitor-3.0

Table 2.2 Available software

Installation Package	
InteliDrive 3.8.0 Install Suite	

Table 2.3 Available package

# 2.3 How to connect InteliVision 5 CAN to the controller

#### 2.3.1 Physical description

InteliVision 5 CAN is IP65 protected from the the both sides (front and rear). From that reason, there are not present screw terminals for wire connection as generally used on ComAp controllers and displays.

InteliVision 5 CAN is equipped by 8-pins waterproof automotive connector on the rear side. InteliVision 5 Harness-2 cable (more details in InteliVision 5 Harness-2 (page 17)) or cable manufactured by customer has to be used for InteliVision 5 CAN connection.

It is strictly recommended to use two ferrit cores on attached cable to the display in case of InteliVision 5 CAN Backlit version is used in Marine applications. Ferrit cores suppress transmitted interferences from the display to meet extended MARINE requirements given by Germanischer Lloyd standards. More details in InteliVision 5 Harness-2 (page 17).

#### 2.3.2 Address overview

Following table shows which display's CAN terminal addresses are supported by the specific controllers, and how many displays can be connected to the controller at the same time.

Supported CAN terminal addresses	InteliVision 5 CAN	InteliVision 5 CAN Backlit	InteliVision 8	InteliVision 12Touch	I-RD-CAN
InteliDrive DCU <sup>*1</sup>	1, 2, 3	1, 2, 3	1, 2, 3	-	1, 2, 3
InteliDrive DCU Marine <sup>*1</sup>	1, 2, 3, 4, 5	1, 2, 3, 4, 5	1, 2, 3, 4	1,2,3,4,5	1, 2, 3, 4, 5
InteliDrive Mobile	1, 2	1, 2	1, 2	-	-
InteliDrive Mobile Logger	1, 2	1, 2	1, 2	-	-



InteliGen NT *2	1,2,3,4	1, 2, 3, 4	1, 2, 3, 4	1,2,3,4	-
InteliSys NT *2	1,2,3,4	1, 2, 3, 4	1, 2, 3, 4	1,2,3,4	-
InteliSys GAS	1,2,3,4	1,2,3,4	1,2,3,4	1,2,3,4	-

#### Note: \*1

Address #3 can be in the controller enabled or disabled for InteliVision 5 CAN, InteliVision 8 or I-RD-CAN utilization by 5thRemPan setpoint value. ENABLED ~ address #3 is available for InteliVision 5 CAN (or InteliVision 8 or I-RD-CAN or InteliVision 12Touch), DISABLED ~ address #3 is not available for displays but it is dedicated for modem.

#### Note: \*2

Addresses #3 and #4 can be in the controller enabled or disabled for InteliVision 5 CAN, InteliVision 8 or InteliVision 12Touch by CANAddrSwitch1 (address #3) or by CANAddrSwitch2 (address #4) setpoint value. OTHER ~ address #3 or #4 is available for InteliVision 5 CAN (or InteliVision 8, or InteliVision 12Touch), MODEM ~ address #3 or #4 is not available for displays but it is dedicated for modem.

The following CAN addresses are used for modules connected to CAN2 (inter-controller CAN bus). There cannot be more modules using the same address connected at the same time, if they would be there, communication failure of modules with the same CAN address appears. CAN address can be changed using jumpers, configuration program or from the display - refer to the corresponding chapter or reference guide for detailed description.

Real CAN2	CAN Addresses used for modules and displays									
address	IG-MU	I-LB	I-LB (modem)	I-LB+ *3	IG-IB <sup>*2</sup> (IBConfig ≤ 1.5)	IG-IB <sup>*4</sup> (IBConfig ≥ 1.6)	IV 8	I-RD- CAN	IV 5CAN	
121								5	5	
122			2				4	4	4	
123	2	2		1	1	2	2	2	2	
124	1	1		2	2	1	1	1	1	
125	modern		1				3	3	3	

#### Note: \*3

Please note that USB port is using its CAN address only if an external device is connected to the USB port of I-LB+. Make sure that other device (e.g. IG-IB) is not using the same CAN address as USB port of an I-LB+, because using USB port could interrupt CAN communication.

#### Note: \*4

Please note that addresses 1 and 2 (123, 124) are exchanged in versions IBConfig  $\leq$  1.5 and IBConfig  $\geq$  1.6.



#### 2.3.3 Connection rules

Example of the controller connection between InteliDrive DCU Marine and the display units. Each topology must follow the rules in the connection table (see above).

Up to five displays can be connected to InteliDrive DCU Marine controller:





There can be up to five displays connected to the CAN bus in the same time:



#### 2.3.4 CAN bus connection rules

Generally, in ideal case the CAN bus line should have line topology, bus from one unit to the next one (no star, no cable stubs, no branches) both ends must be terminated by the  $120\Omega$  (internal or external) resistor. Maximal CAN bus length is up to 200 meters when 250 kBd bus speed or up to 900 meters in case of 50 kBd speed. For CAN data cables details see chapter **Technical data (page 50)**.





**Note:** See Installation and wiring (page 14) chapter how to connect/disconnect built-in 120Ω terminator in InteliVision 5 CAN.

**Note:** CAN bus ISO 11898 standard recommends a maximum un-terminated stub length of 0,3m for a 1Mbps signaling rate. Using 50 / 250kbps rate implemented in ComAp controllers and careful CAN bus design, longer stub lengths can be acceptable. It is recommended to construct cable stubs (un-terminated branches) as short as possible, preferably up to 1m.

Extending the CAN bus length, "T" network configuration, interconnection of CAN bus segments with different speed (50 or 250 kbps) can be realized by I-CR module (CAN repeater) provided by ComAp. See corresponding documentation for more details.

#### 2.3.5 Communication detection

Connection is established in case of the communication parameters are set correctly, otherwise the communication error screen is displayed.

▶ Use ↑ or ↓ and choose appropriate address and press Enter.

If communication parameters are correct the error screen disappears. InteliVision 5 CAN identifies connected controllers and configuration is downloaded automatically without any additional dialogue. In case of need, communication addresses can be modified in Communication menu – see **Communication (page 33)**.





# **2.4 Power supply, analog input and binary output connection**

See Installation and wiring (page 14) chapter for pin-out and dimensions description.



**Note:** Binary output is used for Horn function without possibility of configuration (pin 3, pin 4). It is Solid State Relay with galvanic separation - like free contact. Max 36VDC / 0,5A.

**Note:** Pin 2 – Analog / Binary Input for display and buttons backlit control. Connect resistive pot for continuous backlit change:  $0 \neq \sim 0\%$ ;  $2400 \neq \sim 100\%$ . Or just place contact to switch between 0% and 100% intensity.

**Note:** The 1A standard diode in power feeding circuit is important to meet MARINE requirements given by Germanischer Lloyd standards.



# **3 Installation and wiring**

3.1 Dimensions, terminals and mounting	15
3.1.1 InteliVision 5 CAN,	15
3.1.2 InteliVision 5 Harness-2	17
3.1.3 InteliVision 5 IP 65 connector	17
3.2 How to plug-in the Harmess cable	17
3.3 How to extract the Harmess cable	18
3.4 CAN Bus line ferrit cores	19
6 back to Table of contents	



### 3.1 Dimensions, terminals and mounting

#### 3.1.1 InteliVision 5 CAN,

InteliVision 5 ComAc Suma () () () () () () () () () () () () () (	164 (6.5")	110 (4.3")		
245 (9.7")	Fi	xing cli	20 28	28



1-5	Power supply 8 – 36VDC
6-8	CAN bus (with galvanic separation)
3-4	Binary output configured for Horn function. It is Solid State Relay with galvanic separation. Max 36VDC/0,5A (like free contact).
2-1	Analog/Binary Input for display and buttons backlit control. Connect resistive pot for continuous backlit change: $0 \Rightarrow 0\%$ ; 2400 $\Rightarrow 100\%$ . Or just place contact to switch between 0% and 100% intensity.

**Note:** It is necessary to screw out/in GORE-tex plug to be able to terminate the CAB bus line with the terminating resistor. Make the screwing gently by hand, holding also the bottom part of the plug, not only the upper part. Inadequate force can damages the GORE-tex plug!



#### 3.1.2 InteliVision 5 Harness-2



#### 3.1.3 InteliVision 5 IP 65 connector

Connector package contains the connector body and 10 corresponding terminal female pins.

- Female terminals are intended to crimp-in 18-22 AWG wire range (diameter 0,644 1,024 mm, cross section 0,326 0,823 mm<sup>2</sup>).
- Cable manufacturer has to use at least Molex tools as Manual Hand Crimp Tool (63811-4400) and Terminal Extraction Tool (63813-1500) for the Cable production.

### 3.2 How to plug-in the Harmess cable

**Note:** There are used pictures of two-pins Molex MX150L connectors in description below. 8-pins, dual rows, vertical, PCB header version of the Molex plug is used in InteliVision 5 CAN body. 8-pins, dual rows Molex receptacle version is used on the Harness cable. System how to plug-in and extract the Harness cable is identical.



Firmly push connectors together until you feel them snap together, you should hear a click. This audible and tactile confirmation ensures the connectors are properly and fully mated.





Press CPA towards plug to engage the secondary lock.



#### 3.3 How to extract the Harmess cable

Pull out CPA



Fully depress locking latch



**Note:** Locking latch must be fully depressed to release the locking ramp on the plug and allow the connectors to be separated!





Pull connectors apart

![](_page_18_Picture_3.jpeg)

### **3.4 CAN Bus line ferrit cores**

It is strictly recommended to be mount two ferrit cores on the attached cable to the display in case of InteliVision 5 CAN Backlit version is used in Marine applications. Ferrit cores suppress transmitted interferences from the display to meet extended MARINE requirements given by Germanischer Lloyd standards.

Two ferrit cores are packed inside InteliVision 5 CAN Backlit ComAp original packing.

![](_page_18_Picture_7.jpeg)

![](_page_18_Picture_8.jpeg)

It is necessary to assembly both ferrit cores on the Harness cable by snapping as close as possible to the InteliVision 5 CAN Backlit display.

![](_page_19_Picture_0.jpeg)

# **4** Graphical user interface

4.1 GUI overview	21
4.2 Navigation buttons	21
4.3 Context buttons	22
4.4 Control buttons	23
4.5 Metering screens	23
4.6 Setpoints screens	26
4.6.1 Numerical value change	26
4.6.2 String selection	27
4.6.3 String edit	27
4.6.4 Time and date edit	28
4.6.5 Combined setpoints	28
4.7 Alarmlist page	29
4.7.1 ECU Alarmlist page	30
4.7.2 AlarmList page navigation	30
4.8 History page	32
4.9 Help/Others menu	32
4.9.1 Languages	32
4.9.2 Password	33
4.9.3 Communication	33
4.9.4 ControllerInfo	34
4.9.5 ECU Modules	34
4.9.6 IV Info	35
4.9.7 IV Settings	35
4.9.8 Service screen	36
6 back to Table of contents	

![](_page_20_Picture_0.jpeg)

#### 4.1 GUI overview

This chapter provides general information on how to operate the InteliVision 5 CAN display.

![](_page_20_Figure_3.jpeg)

1	Status: Status LED indication (green = InteliVision 5 CAN is powered)
2	Navigation buttons: Arrows for movement + Menu and Enter button
3	Context buttons: Control or select submenu/sub-options buttons
4	Control buttons: Horn reset, Fault reset, Stop and Start buttons

## 4.2 Navigation buttons

![](_page_20_Figure_6.jpeg)

![](_page_21_Picture_0.jpeg)

![](_page_21_Picture_1.jpeg)

Up arrow: Movement up

Note: To leave (Escape) the menu, use Menu button.

![](_page_21_Picture_4.jpeg)

### 4.3 Context buttons

![](_page_21_Figure_6.jpeg)

1	Clutch ON/OFF: Clutch control (close/open)
2	UserBtn 1: User Configurable button no. 1
3	Alarmlist: Jump to Alarm list
4	History: Jump to history screen
5	Mode: Jump to the controller mode window

![](_page_22_Picture_0.jpeg)

**Note:** All context buttons are user configurable up to customer's demands, overview above corresponds to default screen configuration included in default controller's archives.

### **4.4 Control buttons**

Start I	Start: Start command
Stop 0	Stop: Stop command
*	Fault reset: Acknowledges faults and alarms (active only in Alarm screen)
	Horn reset: Deactivates the horn (audible alarm)

**Note:** START and STOP buttons are independent on the InteliVision 5 screen, menu or sub-menu. The buttons work analogously to START/STOP buttons on a controller. The buttons can be deactivated by InteliVision 5 CAN lock mode, indicated by 1 icon.

### 4.5 Metering screens

The Metering screen is mainly intended for values overview. The home (main by default) metering screen appears after the InteliVision 5 CAN and controller are powered up. The jump to the first metering screen is performed after 15 minutes of inactivity and only in case there is no active and unconfirmed alarm in the controller.

Arrows for leaving are used for measurement screens browsing.

![](_page_23_Picture_0.jpeg)

Main screen

![](_page_23_Figure_2.jpeg)

**Note:** From the home measurement screen display will jump to the alarm list immediately when any alarms occurs.

Analog inputs

![](_page_23_Figure_5.jpeg)

Binary inputs

🔊 Binary Inputs	[3/	5] 🚺	8
ID BIN		0000000000	0000
Emergency Stop	0	Speed Up	0
Remote Start	0	Speed Down	0
Remote Stop	0	Low Brightness	0
<u>Blackout Start</u>	0	Not Used	0
Remote OFF	0	Not Used	0
RunIndication1	0	Not Used	0
RunIndication2	0		
RunIndication3	0		
NotReady		<b>(</b> ) ()	FF
Load ON UserBtn 1	Alarm	nlist History M	ode

![](_page_24_Picture_0.jpeg)

Binary outputs

🔊 Binary Outputs	[4	/5] 🚺 🔒
ID BOUT		01001001000100
<u>Starter</u>	0	<u>Common Fls 0</u>
Fuel Solenoid	1	<u>Ready To Start 0</u>
<u>Stop Solenoid</u>	0	<u>Ready To Load 0</u>
<u>Cooling Pump</u>	0	<u>CPU Ready 1</u>
<u>Alarm</u>	1	<u>Service Time 0</u>
<u>Horn</u>	0	Not Used 0
<u>Common Wrn</u>	0	
<u>Common Sd</u>	1	
NotReady		🛞 OFF
Load ON UserBtn 1	larπ	list History Mode

Loadsharing

![](_page_24_Picture_4.jpeg)

Statistics

🔊 Statistics [5/5	]		8
Run Hours NumSuccStarts NumUnscStarts DayCons TripCons Memo1 Memo2 MomAvgF1Con L		0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	h ∠nm
Latitude Longitude GPS Speed Service Time PasswordDecode	##### #####	#### #### 174128896	kts h
NotReady		۲	OFF
Load ON UserBtn 1 A1	armlist	History	Mode

![](_page_25_Picture_0.jpeg)

Other screens with ECU values, analogue or binary inputs/outputs can follow. It depends on the controller configuration.

Note: Use 🚺 or 💽 to scroll the screens.

Screens could be hidden or the order of the screens could be modified by users.

#### 4.6 Setpoints screens

To go to Setpoints screen press button, use arrow to find proper item in menu and confirm it with button. The following sub-menu appears with the list of the setpoints groups.

![](_page_25_Picture_6.jpeg)

Setpoints could be presented as a numeric, text, string or mixed value and they can be changed in the following ways:

#### 4.6.1 Numerical value change

- Press the button when the proper setpoints group is chosen (e.g. ProcessControll)
- Use arrows or voice to go to a certain set-point (e.g. Gear Teeth) and press Enter button, see picture below:

![](_page_25_Figure_11.jpeg)

![](_page_26_Picture_0.jpeg)

► Use → or ← buttons to go to a certain position of the field and use or buttons to change the value.
Then use button to confirm new value.

**Note:** If you set the value out of limit, the field will get red color and the new value is invalid. Invalid value cannot be confirmed.

#### 4.6.2 String selection

- Press the button when the proper setpoints group is chosen (e.g. Basic Settings)
- ▶ Use arrows 🚺 or 💌 to go to a certain set-point (e.g. Mode ID) and press Enter button, see picture below

![](_page_26_Figure_6.jpeg)

▶ Use I or I buttons to select the string from the list and press the I button.

#### 4.6.3 String edit

- Press the button when the proper setpoints group is chosen (e.g. Basic Settings)
- Use arrows or voice to go to a certain set-point (e.g. Engine Name) and press Enter button, see picture below:

![](_page_27_Picture_0.jpeg)

🕑 Basic Settings [1/6]	<u> </u>	
Engine Name		
MSk	1.6	
Mode ID		
	AUX	
Gear Teet Engine Name		
	120	
RPU Gear (MSW 1.6 )		
<0123456789:;<=>?@	120	
Nominal R 🖌 🍟	,	
T	1500 RPM	Actual position in character list
Governor Mode		
ISOC	HRON	
Remove Insert 0/a/A <-		

▶ Use  $\blacksquare$  or  $\blacksquare$  buttons to select the character and  $\rightarrow \leftarrow$  buttons for the next position and press  $\blacksquare$  button.

**Note:** There is available Remove, Insert and 0/a/A buttons for easier string editing and faster character navigation.

#### 4.6.4 Time and date edit

- Press the button when the proper setpoints group is chosen (e.g. Date/Time)
- ▶ Use arrows 💽 or 🚺 to go to a certain set-point (e.g. Date) and press 💷 button, see picture below:

![](_page_27_Picture_7.jpeg)

• Use  $\frown$  or  $\frown$  buttons to select the character and  $\rightarrow \leftarrow$  buttons for the next position and press  $\frown$  button.

#### 4.6.5 Combined setpoints

Press the button when the proper setpoints group is chosen (e.g. IV Settings)

![](_page_28_Picture_0.jpeg)

Use arrows or to go to a certain set-point (e.g. Backlight Time) and press without button, see picture below:

IV Set	tings [6/7]					
Backlight Time						
	NO TIMEOUT					
KeysBao						
KeusBkl	Backlight Time [min]					
REGOUND	241					
Interna	240					
Chinese bolan		$\overline{}$				
CIGICCHOPP	PRE01003    NEAT    \-    -	r I				

Use or buttons to select the number, → or ← for the next position or PREVIOUS/NEXT context buttons and press button.

### 4.7 Alarmlist page

On the Alarmlist page the user is abel tobrowse and work with alarms. When an error occurs, a new alarm appears in the Alarmlist page, exclamation mark and red point icon start blinking on the measurement screens.

! Alarmlist		6
01/Emergency Stop		
	17	0/ 1
Clutch ON ECU Alarm Metering History	)∫ Mo	ode

Image 4.1 : Alarmlist page overview (common alarms)

![](_page_29_Figure_1.jpeg)

**Note:** When a new alarm appears AlarmList screen is displayed automatically when Main Measurement screen is displayed. From different screen, AlarmList button has to be used to display AlarmList screen.

#### 4.7.1 ECU Alarmlist page

InteliDrive controllers family controller have visually separated common and ECU alarms. The ECU Alarmlist page is accesible by the button in the user button section.

![](_page_29_Figure_5.jpeg)

Image 4.2 : ECU Alarmlist page overview

#### 4.7.2 AlarmList page navigation

▶ To go to AlarmList screen, press Alarmlist context button or 🛄 button and choose AlarmList.

![](_page_30_Picture_0.jpeg)

! AlarmList 🛛 🌻 🚺	
*01/Wrn Warning 7	
*02/Wrn Warning 8	
*03/Wrn Warning 9	
*04/Wrn Warning 10	
*05/Sd SD 11	
*06/Sd SD 12	
*07/Wrn ECU	
*08/Fls CoolantTemp	
*09/Wrn ActualTrg	
*10/Wrn Batt volt	Sum of all alarms
-	7/10/10
ClutchOFF UserBtn 1 Metering History	Moze Sum of unacknowledged active and inactive alarms
	Number of active alarms

- Press button to confirm all alarms. The exclamation mark will stop blinking, the blinking red point icon disappears.
- Resolve the error. The alarm will disappear from the AlarmList and exclamation mark will turn off.

**Note:** When the issue is resolved before Fault Reset button is used, the alarm still remains in the AlarmList (it will be turned black) till you press Fault Reset button.

#### Types of alarm

*01/Wrn Warning 7	Active unacknowledged alarm (not confirmed by Fault Reset button)
01/Wrn Warning 7	Active acknowledged alarm (confirmed by Fault Reset button)
*02/Wrn Warning 8	Inactive unacknowledged alarm (resolved - visible only in unacknowledged state)

**Note:** The asterisk indicates unacknowledged alarm status, background color or text color (acknowledged alarm) indicates alarm severity.

![](_page_31_Picture_0.jpeg)

### 4.8 History page

Press History context button or and select the History in the menu. For details see following picture:

No.	Reason	Date	Time	
0	Engine Stop	25/01/2012	15:31:39.7	
-1	Close Load OFF	25/01/2012	15:31:39.4	
-2	Wrn Underspeed	1 25/01/2012	15:31:39.4	
-3	TimeStame	25/01/2012	15:31:00.3	
-4	TimeStame	25/01/2012	15:30:00.2	
-5	TimeStame	25/01/2012	15:29:00.1	
-6	TimeStame	25/01/2012	15:28:00.1	
-7	TimeStame	25/01/2012	15:27:00.1	
-8	TimeStame	25/01/2012	15:26:00.1	
-9	TimeStame	25/01/2012	15:25:00.3	
-10	TimeStame	25/01/2012	15:24:00.3	
-11	TimeStame	25/01/2012	15:23:00.2	
-12	TimeStame	25/01/2012	15:22:00.2	
-13	TimeStame	25/01/2012	15:21:00.1	
-14	TimeStame	25/01/2012	15:20:00.0	
-15	TimeStame	25/01/2012	15:19:00.3	
-16	TimeStame	25/01/2012	15:18:00.2	
-17	TimeStame	25/01/2012	15:17:00.2	
-18	TimeStame	25/01/2012	15:16:00.1	Number of history records
No.	(-3)/ 103	Doto 25/01/20	112	riamber er motory records
Reason	TimeStamp	Time 15:31:00	.3	
1×	Номе	Metering / <-		Cursor position

Context buttons				
Once/1xPage	Select page mode-scroll history by lines or page			
Home	Jump to the first column when the first column is not on the screen			
Metering	Jump to the last displayed Measurement screen			
Arrow to left	Scroll to the left side			
Arrow to right	Scroll to the right side			

**Note:** History depends on a controller configuration. History is erased when controller configuration is changed and reprogrammed. For more information how to change history columns see controller's Reference Guide.

### 4.9 Help/Others menu

Sub-menu Help/Others contains following screens:

- Languages
- Password
- Communication
- ControllerInfo
- IV Info
- IV Settings
- Service Screen

#### 4.9.1 Languages

Press button.

Use or to choose Help/Others menu item and use

![](_page_32_Picture_0.jpeg)

▶ Use 🚺 or 🕶 to choose Language and use 🛒.

![](_page_32_Picture_2.jpeg)

Languages	[1/8]		8
English			
Chinese		*)	
Clutch ON UserB	tn 1) Metering   Ala	armlist	Mode

Note: InteliVision 5 CAN will reboot when the language is changed. This reboot does not affect control unit.

#### 4.9.2 Password

It is necessary to enter password level 3 for possibility to change controller passwords.

To see information how to handle with passwords go to How to enter a password (page 40) and How to change a password (page 41) chapters.

	Users/Password	[2/8]		<u> </u>
E	nterPassword			
6		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
cn	<del>itch un   Us</del> erBth 1    M	etering	HIARMIISt	riode

![](_page_32_Figure_9.jpeg)

#### 4.9.3 Communication

To see information on how to connect InteliVision 5 CAN display to a controller, go to How to connect InteliVision 5 CAN to the controller (page 8).

Communication [3/8]	. 6
ConnectionType Din	rect
Controlle <u>r Adr</u>	1
ConnectionType	L
NT-Terminal Direct	
Clutch ON)UserBtn 1) Metering Alarmlis	t) Mode

#### 4.9.4 ControllerInfo

To see information about the control unit see Controller info page. See the picture below:

Contr	ollerIr	nfo	[4/8]			<u> </u>
ID Strin	9 <b>:</b>	ID-D	CU-Mar	ine-3.C	).0.15 R:	2017-11-
Applicat	ion :	PRP				
- SW Versi	on :	3.0.	0.15			
−HW Versi	on :	2.0				
Serial N	umber :	FF01	.02AE			
Password	Decode :	4174	128896			
HW Name	:	ID-T	EST-MA	RINE		
ID-Chip	:	IIII	IIII00	000000		
Dongle	:	0000	000000	000000		
SW Dongl	e :	0000	000000	000000		
Clutch ON	UserBtn	1) [M	eterins	Alar	mlist	Mode

#### 4.9.5 ECU Modules

To see information about the connected ECU units see the ECU Modules page. See the picture below:

	ECU	Modules	[5/8]		<b>I A</b>
Ind	lex N	ате		Addr.	Contr.Addr.
(C1)	utch C	N) UserBtn	1) Metering	∬Alarmlis	st] Mode

#### 4.9.6 IV Info

Information about the InteliVision 5 properties can be seen in IV Info screen. See the picture below:

IV Info [6.	/8]		A
ComAp Copyri	lght (C) 2010–2	2017	
SW Version	: 1.9.0.5		
HW Version	: 1.0		
Serial Number	: 0A090001		
Release Date	: 2017-10-20		
HW Name	: IV5 RD		
Power Voltage	: 23.99 V		
Board Temp.	: 26.5 °C		
Resistor	: 1020 Ohm		
Brightness	: 43 %		
Supported Code F	ages:		
	Windows-1250		
	Windows-1252		
	Windows-1251		
	Windows-1254		
	Windows-936		
Clutch ON UserBt	n 1) Metering Alam	mlist Mode	2

#### 4.9.7 IV Settings

Setting of parameters related to InteliVision 5 CAN back-light and Internal Horn features.

IV Settings	[7/8]		6
Backlight Time	9	NO TIMEOUT	
KeysBackLight		OFF	
KeysBkLtOffse <sup>.</sup>	t	0	%
Internal Horn		ENABLED	
Clutch ON UserBtn	1 Meteri	n9   Alarmlist	Mode

*Backlight Time* settings allow switching off display and keyboard backlight. Backlight time could be switched off based on the time from 1 to 240 minutes or never.

*KeysBackLight* setting enables or disables keyboard backlight, the parameter does not influence display backlight. The parameter is available for InteliVision 5 CAN Backlit version only.

*KeysBkLtOffset* parameter enables to decrease keyboard backlight intensity in comparison to display backlight. Keyboard backlight intensity is decreased from adjusted value described in chapter

How to change display brightness (page 48) by the parameter value. The parameter is available for InteliVision 5 CAN Backlit version only.

Internal Horn setting enables or disables Internal Horn functionality.

#### 4.9.8 Service screen

Context information like telephone number, name of the service organization and etc... could be placed on this screen.

	ServiceScreen [7/7] 🔒 🤷
	service-user screen was not defined!
<u> </u>	
l C I	utch ON  UserBtn 1  Metering   Alarmlist    Mode

The Service screen can be modified in the Screen Editor SW in DriveConfig.

![](_page_36_Picture_0.jpeg)

# 5 Quick help

This chapter provides information on how to quickly find important data. To be more familiar with InteliVision 5 CAN menu, see **Graphical user interface (page 20)**.

5.1 Main icons description	38
5.2 How to view a controller mode	39
5.3 How to view a controller status	39
5.4 How to view a timer status	39
5.5 How to view a control clutch status	40
5.6 How to enter a password	40
5.7 How to change a password	41
5.8 How to log out	42
5.9 How to change controller mode	42
5.10 How to find alarms	43
5.11 How to change setpoints	44
5.12 How to program InteliVision 5 CAN	45
5.13 How to change display brightness	48
6 back to Table of contents	

### **5.1 Main icons description**

	Icons at the top of InteliVision 5 display
	Terminal is locked; password was not entered
∎ <b>1</b> ∎13	Terminal is NOT locked; password is entered
<b>1</b>	Access to InteliVision 5 CAN is locked; the mode is activated via "Remote lock" binary input or via LOC mode of InteliDrive controller
	<ul> <li>Red exclamation mark</li> <li>flashing symbol means a new alarm in the alarm list without operator's look-in into the alarm list</li> <li>stable symbol means active alarm presence in alarm list</li> <li>the symbol disappears when the alarm list is cleaned out</li> </ul>
٠	Flashing icon indicates presence of not acknowledged alarm in Alarm List

Icons at the bottom of InteliVision 5 display		
	Red exclamation mark, the same behavior as exclamation mark at the top, the symbol is/is not present on display screen up to screen configuration stored in controller	
Clutch0FF	Green button; closed clutch	
Clutch ON	Button contour; opened clutch	

Icons referring to specific screens	
	Menu screen
	Measurement screen

![](_page_38_Picture_0.jpeg)

	Setpoints screen
	Alarm list screen
$\odot$	History screen
	Help/Others screen

#### 5.2 How to view a controller mode

Controller Mode is displayed in the right bottom part of the screen.

Running	No Timer	0
	<b>e</b>	AUX
Clutch ON UserBtn :	1 Alarmlist History	Mode

### 5.3 How to view a controller status

Controller status is displayed in the left bottom part of the screen.

Running	No	Timer	0
		۲	AUX
Clutch ON	(UserBtn 1) (Alarmlist)	History	Mode

### **5.4 How to view a timer status**

Timers as Prestart, Cooling etc. are displayed in the right bottom part of the screen.

Running	No Timer	0
	۲	AUX
Clutch ON UserBtn 1 Alarmli:	st History	Mode

![](_page_39_Picture_0.jpeg)

#### 5.5 How to view a control clutch status

The clutch status is displayed in two ways. It is indicated via "Loaded" controller status in left bottom part of InteliVision 5 CAN display. Moreover it is indicated by clutch button color. The bottom buttons of InteliVision 5 CAN are SW configurable, so it depends on customer's configuration if there is associated clutch functionality to the button or not.

![](_page_39_Picture_3.jpeg)

Mode button and command buttons are disabled when InteliVision 5 CAN lock is active – indicated by Will icon. SW button link has gray link around (when no color background is used) and dark green when clutch status is highlighted.

![](_page_39_Picture_5.jpeg)

#### 5.6 How to enter a password

To enter a controller password (password for 3 protection levels 1-2-3):

- Press I button
- Use or to choose Help/Others and press

![](_page_40_Picture_0.jpeg)

- Use or to choose Password menu item and press
- Use or use to go to EnterPassword and press
- Use → or ← to select the digit and us e<sup>1</sup> or <sup>1</sup> to set the number you need to enter. See the picture below:

Password [2/7	] 🔒
EnterPassword	
Ent c	erPassword 0 65535 0 *****
Clutch0FF UserBtn 1	Metering <>

**Note:** The appropriate password level (1-2-3) to the inserted password is unlocked. Properly inserted password is indicated by unlocked icon indicated entered password level **final** in the right upper corner of the display.

### 5.7 How to change a password

It is necessary to enter password level 3 for possibility to change controller passwords.

- Enter a password for password level 3 according to chapter How to enter a password (page 40)
- Press button
- Use or to choose Help/Others and press
- Use or to choose Password menu item and press
- Use or to choose the password level which are you going to change, i.e. ChangePassw 1 or 2 or 3 and press withon
- Use → or ← to select the digit and us e<sup>[]</sup> or <sup>[]</sup> to set the number you need to enter. See the picture below:

![](_page_41_Picture_0.jpeg)

Password	[2/7]	<b></b> 3
Logout		
ChangePassu	ı 1	
ChangePass	ChangePassw 1	
ChangePass	[0 65535]	
User	stn 1    Meterins    <-	->

#### 5.8 How to log out

To log out:

- Press button
- ▶ Use 善 or ➡ to choose **Help/Others** and press ➡
- ▶ Use 🚺 or 🚺 to choose **Password** menu item and press 🖳
- ▶ Use 🚺 or 🚺 to choose Logout and press 🖳

Password [2/7]	<b>-</b> 3
Logout	
ChangePassw 1	
ChangePassw 2	
ChangePassw 3	
ClutchOFF UserBtn 1 Meterine Alarmlist Mode	•

### 5.9 How to change controller mode

To Change a Controller Mode:

- Press Mode context button in right bottom corner of the display (see the picture below)
- Use or to choose menu item and press

![](_page_42_Picture_0.jpeg)

![](_page_42_Figure_1.jpeg)

**Note:** Mode button is disabled when InteliVision 5 CAN receives information about "Remote OFF" or "Remote HRB" activated mode from a controller.

Loaded	l	No	Timer	0
			۲	AUX
Clutch0FF	JserBtn 1 Alarmlist	$\left  \left[ + \right] \right $	listory	Mode

### 5.10 How to find alarms

To find alarms:

- Press button
- ▶ Use 💽 or 💽 to choose menu item AlarmList and press 🖭
- Or use context button AlarmList to jump directly to Alarm list

![](_page_42_Picture_9.jpeg)

![](_page_43_Picture_0.jpeg)

**Note:** From the first measurement screen controller will jump to the alarm list immediately when any alarms occurs.

### 5.11 How to change setpoints

To change setpoints:

![](_page_43_Picture_4.jpeg)

3

Mod

Crank Attempts

<mark>lutchOFF</mark>UserBtn 1) Metering Alarmlist

![](_page_44_Picture_0.jpeg)

How to edit setpoints see Setpoints screens (page 26).

#### 5.12 How to program InteliVision 5 CAN

To update InteliVision 5 CAN the IV5CANprog PC SW is supposed to be used. PC software is free nad available on the ComAp web pages in download section. USB/CAN converter has to be used for connection between PC and InteliVision 5 CAN. Only USB-CANmodul1 provided by SYS TEK <u>www.systec-electronic.com</u> is supported by IV5CANprog application.

![](_page_44_Picture_4.jpeg)

There is available **ECU Simulator** product from ComAp which contains the supported USB/CAN converter, suitable cabling and ECU simulator application install CD (not needed for InteliVision 5 CAN reprogramming). Cabling set available in ECU Simulator kit:

![](_page_44_Figure_6.jpeg)

![](_page_45_Picture_1.jpeg)

Update procedure:

- Download from ComAp web pages and install IV5CANProg-Install-Suite-x.x installation package. The package contains also Windows drivers for SYS TEK USB/CAN converter, follow instructions of installation wizard.
- Connect USB/CAN converter to USB port of PC / notebook.
- Connect communication cable between the CAN bus (where the reprogrammed InteliVision 5 CAN is connected) and USB/CAN converter.
- Run the IV5CANprog application. The application requires .NET Framework installed in the Windows system, at least version 2.0. Error message is displayed in case of missing required .NET use Microsoft Download Center for installation or run again IV5CANProg-Install-Suite-x.x installation package which contains also .NET installation tool.
- Set the right communication parameters in the first section of application window Controller and Terminal addresses (addresses corresponding to InteliVision 5 CAN setting), use Auto detection for CAN bus speed, auto detection (255) for USB/CAN conv. num.

![](_page_45_Figure_8.jpeg)

![](_page_46_Picture_0.jpeg)

#### Press Connect button

Communication —		
Controller address:	1	USB/CAN conv. num.: 255
Terminal address:	1 💌	(,
CAN bus speed:	Auto detection 💌	Connect 🔶

In case of successful connection are communication parameters locked, connection icon is changed into green connected state.

Communication —	
Controller address:	1 USB/CAN conv. num.: (255 = auto detection)
Terminal address:	1 🔽
CAN bus speed:	250 kBit/s 🔽 💋 Disconnect

In case of unsuccessful connection is error message displayed. You have to check correct cabling and correct communication setting.

Connectio	Connection failed			
<u>.</u>	Cannot connect to the IV5 terminal. Check your communication settings, especially controller and terminal address.			
	ОК			

Check boxes for Firmware/Font/Logo update are available if connection between PC and InteliVision 5 CAN is established. Check appropriate box and choose the file which should be uploaded into the InteliVision 5 CAN.

	► 🗖 Firmware 🚃	
	Current firmware:	InteliVision5-1.0
	Select firmware:	
-	► 🗖 Font ———	
	Current font:	InteliVision5 font Simplified Chinese GB2312-1.0
	Select font:	Y
	Cogo	Image size: 320 x 240px

![](_page_47_Picture_0.jpeg)

- Press Update button and the upload process will start. Update progress is indicated in the bottom part of application window.
- Info window pops up at the end of update procedure. In case that update was interrupted by some accident as power feeding interruption, cabling problem or problem with PC, the InteliVision 5 CAN can remain in boot state. Also in this fault state is the InteliVision 5 CAN still prepared to receive updates via CAN from IV5CANprog application, the update procedure can be repeated again. InteliVision 5 CAN supports only 250kBd speed in boot state.

TV5CANprog	
Communication	
Controller address: 1	USB/CAN conv. num.: 255
Terminal address: 1	(255 = auto detection)
CAN bus speed: 250 kB	it/s 🔽 Disconnect
Firmware	
Current firmware: InteliVis	ion5-1.0
Select firmware:	<u></u>
Update co	omplete 🔀
Current font:	Firmware update was successful.
Select font:	
ComAp	C:\Documents and Settings\pavel_d\Plocha\r
InteliVision 5	mage size: 320 x 240px
(C) 2011 ComAp s.r.o. Version 1.0.0.2	😤 Update 🛛 😂 Exit
Programming logo 100%	

### 5.13 How to change display brightness

The brightness of the display can be changed by holding 🛅 button and repeated pressing 💽 or 💽 See the picture below:

![](_page_48_Figure_1.jpeg)

Two modes are available in InteliVision 5 CAN. To switch between **Day** or **Night** mode hold <sup>100</sup> button only several seconds. Pictogram for day or night appears on the screen.

To change day or night brightness intensity:

- Hold I button until day/night mode on the screens appear
- Press and hold button with or to change brightness intensity

![](_page_48_Figure_6.jpeg)

**Note:** Brightness setting has priority in this order: analogue input brightness dimmer, keyboard. When the analogue input is used, small pictograms in brightness sub-menu appears.

![](_page_48_Picture_8.jpeg)

**Note:** InteliVision 5 CAN Backlit version with back-lighted buttons uses the brightness setting for display and also for buttons light intensity. Additionally it is possible to attenuate buttons brightness in comparison to display brightness via KeysBkLtOffset parameter in Others / IV Settings menu.

**Note:** Display backlight could be switched off due to Backlight Time InteliVision 5 CAN setting. For backlight recovery any button has to be pressed.

![](_page_49_Picture_0.jpeg)

# 6 Technical data

#### **Power supply**

Voltage supply	8-36V DC
Consumption depends on supply	0,7A at 8
voltage	VDC

#### **Operating conditions**

Operating temperature	-20+70oC
Storage temperature	-30+80oC
Flash memory data retention time	10 years
IP Protection	IP65

#### **Standard conformity**

	EN 61010-1:95
Low voltage Directive	+A1:97
	EN 61000-6-3
Electromagnetic	EN 61000-6-4
Compatibility	EN 61000-6-1
	EN 61000-6-2
Vibration	EN 60068-2-6

#### Mechanical

Front panel	245x164mm
LCD display cut-out	175x115mm
Weight	855g

#### **CAN bus interface**

Maximal CAN bus lenght: CAN bus mode = 250 kBd	200 m
Maximal CAN bus lenght: CAN bus mode = 50 kBd	900 m
Nominal impedance	120 <del>†</del>
Cable type	twisted pair (shielded)
Nominal Velocity of Propagation	min. 75% (max. 4,4 ns/m)
Wire crosscut	min. 0,25 mm2
Maximal attenuation (at 1 MHz)	2 dB / 100m
Recommended Industrial Automation & Process Control Cables:	
BELDEN (www.belden.com):	
3082A DeviceBus for Allen-Bradley DeviceNet	
3083A DeviceBus for Allen-Bradley DeviceNet	
3086A DeviceBus for Honeywell SDS	
3087A DeviceBus for Honeywell SDS	
3084A DeviceBus for Allen-Bradley	DeviceNet

3085A DeviceBus for Allen-Bradley DeviceNet	
3105A Paired EIA Industrial RS485 cable	
LAPP CABLE:	
Unitronic BUS DeviceNet Trunk Cable	
Unitronic BUS DeviceNet Drop Cable	
Unitronic BUS CAN	
Unitronic-FD BUS P CAN UL/CSA	

#### HW modifications IV 5 CAN

CAN Galvanically Isolated	Yes
Binary Output	Yes
Analog Input	Yes
Backlight Keys	No
Protected IP	IP-65

#### HW modifications IV 5 CAN Backlit

CAN Galvanically Isolated	Yes
Binary Output	Yes
Analog Input	Yes
Backlight Keys	Yes
Protected IP	IP-65

#### LCD specifications

LCD panel	5,7"
Resolution	320 × 240 pixels
Pixel Pitch	0.120 x 0.360 mm

6 back to Table of contents

![](_page_50_Picture_0.jpeg)

# 7 List of possible events

InteliVision 5 CAN screen texts	Description
Detecting	Controller detection sequence is in progress. Text disappears when controller is detected.
Checking	Controller configuration sequence is checking. Text disappears when controller is detected.
Reading cfg. Table	Controller configuration reading is in progress. Text disappears when controller is detected.
Preparing	Display setting Ok.
Running	Indication of running display.
Wrong Display HW	SW and HW mismatch. Correct firmware has to be programmed.
Invalidate configuration table Error	Configuration table is invalid. Controller configuration has to be reprogrammed or upgraded.
Unsupported controller Error	Controller is not supported.
Unsupported cfg. table format Error	Controller configuration table is not supported. InteliVision 5 firmware upgrade is necessary.
Mismatch parameters length Error	Controller parameters mismatch. Controller configuration upgrade is necessary.
Mismatch const values length Error	Controller constants mismatch. Controller configuration upgrade is necessary.
Mismatch values length Error	Controller values mismatch. Controller configuration upgrade is necessary.
Mismatch val states length Error	Controller values states mismatch. Controller configuration upgrade is necessary.
Communication Error	Controller is detected; CAN communication level is not defined correctly. Reason of this behavior could be: CAN bus line is not terminated properly, environment disturbance is present or CAN line is too long.
Terminal addr collision Error	Another CAN bus connected equipment uses the same Terminal address for a given controller. Change Terminal address is necessary.
Screen template missing Error	Unsupported controller firmware, missing InteliVision 5 support.
Screen template version Error	Unsupported controller screen. InteliVision 5 firmware has to be updated.
Font not valid Error	Corrupted display font. Font programming was not done properly. Display firmware/font programming is necessary.
Font format not supported Error	Unsupported font, InteliVision 5 font or firmware is necessary.
Bitmaps not valid Error	Bitmaps (generator, engine, fuel and etc) Firmware upgrade is necessary.
Bitmaps format not supported Error	Unsupported bitmaps format. (Engine, gen-set and etc) Firmware upgrade is necessary.
Default lang. not supported Error	Default/Defined language error/not supported. Language change or code page change is necessary.

#### 6 back to Table of contents